
17.0735.04000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

03/27/2017

Amendment to: Engrossed HB 1299

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

This bill as amended (amendment number 17.0735.03001) provides that a noncommercial driver's license applicant 
may apply by mail or electronically for renewal of a license during every other renewal cycle.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

This bill should have no significant fiscal impact.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Shannon L. Sauer CPA

Agency: ND Dept of Transportation

Telephone: 328-4375

Date Prepared: 03/28/2017



17.0735.03000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/27/2017

Amendment to: HB 1299

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

This bill as amended extends the term of the driver's license from six years to eight.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

There will be no significant fiscal impact for the next two bienniums, as we are in a new renewal cycle beginning in 
July 2017 where we will renew most licenses in the next four years. However, in the biennium beginning July 1, 
2021 and beyond, revenue will decline.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Beginning in 2021, renewals will be every eight years, dropping average license revenue from $4.06 million per 
biennium to $3.0 million per biennium.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Glenn Jackson

Agency: ND Dept of Transportation

Telephone: 328-4792

Date Prepared: 01/27/2017



17.0735.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/12/2017

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1299

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures $50,000

Appropriations $50,000

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The bill extends the driver license from six years to twelve.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

No significant fiscal impact for the next two biennium, as we are in a new renewal cycle beginning in July 2017, 
where we will renew most licenses in the next four years. However, in the 2021 biennium and beyond, revenue will 
decline.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Beginning in 2021, renewals will be every twelve years, dropping average license revenue from 2.03M per year to 
1.02M per year.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The cost to modify license valid periods during the transition to a twelve year license is roughly $50k.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

The process to modify the systems should be accomplished before July 2017, which would require an emergency 
clause and related appropriation.



Name: Glenn Jackson

Agency: ND Dept of Transportation

Telephone: 328-4792

Date Prepared: 01/13/2017
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1299 
1/26/2017 
#27466 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

ction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to the expiration of an operator's license; to provide for and application. 

Minutes: II Attachments #1 -3 

Chairman Ruby opened the hearing on HB 1299. 

Representative Jones introduced HB 1299. There is a similar Senate Bill that is going to go 
through today, and I thought that since it is doing well , I could withdraw this bill. I will go 
through the intent of the bill anyway. It tries to save the Department of Transportation some 
expense by changing the length of a driver's license renewal from six years to twelve years. 
If they don't have to renew licenses so often, they won't have as much expense doing it. We 
won't have the hassle of having to do it every six years. 

In the Senate the bill leaves the time period six years, but allows the license to be renewed 
online every other time. 

In my discussion with the Department of Transportation there is a problem with having this 
done because when we go to the Real ID, they have a limit of eight years to renew a driver's 
license. So, there may need to be some amendments on the bill. 

Vice Chairman Rick C. Becker: Can you explain further the eight-year thing with the 
Department of Transportation? 

Representative Jones: It is a federal requirement with the Real ID. We are working with 
the federal government with Real ID, and the Real ID licenses have to be renewed every 
eight years. That would mean we would have regular drivers' licenses renewing every 12 
years, but if you had a Real ID, it would be renewed every 8 years. 

Chairman Ruby: If you opt out of the Real ID, would this bill for 12 years apply? 

Representative Jones: Yes. 



House Transportation Committee 
HB 1299 
1-26-17 
Page 2 

Chairman Ruby: Your intention was to save the Department of Transportation money and 
the fiscal note has an expenditure of $50,000 and an appropriation of $50,000. I am 
wondering where the savings is 

Representative Jones: I think we have to ask him (assume the Department of 
Transportation) where the savings is. 

I will see what happens on the Senate side, and then decide what we should do with this bill. 

Chairman Ruby: We can hold it, but we will have to act on it next week because it has a 
fiscal effect. 

There was no further support for HB 1299. 

4:40 
Courtney Koebele, North Dakota Medical Association and the North Dakota Society of 
Eye Physicians and Surgeons, spoke to oppose HB 1299. See attachment #1 . 

Chairman Ruby: My eyes haven't changed much since I was 15 years old except for the 
need of bifocals. Am I unusual? 

Courtney Koebele: I am not a physician, so I can't really speak to that. I think everyone is 
different, so not being checked at all is a concern. 

Representative Jones: I know that as people get older they start to change faster. So, on 
page one of the bill it says that at age 65 people must renew every six years. At age 76 they 
must renew every 4 years. Does this satisfy your organization? 

Courtney Koebele: When we were talking about this in the context of the online renewal , 
age 50 was mentioned. 

Nancy Kopp, North Dakota Optometric Association , spoke to oppose HB 1299 and 
provided written testimony from Doctor Taya Patzman, an optometrist from Bismarck and 
Jamestown. See attachment #2, pages 1-2 .. 

Nancy Kopp: The Medical Association as well as the Optometric Association has been 
working with the Department of Transportation on the bill in the Senate. A decision, I hope, 
will be made this afternoon. 

I would also like to advise you that Courtney Koebele, myself, as well as two optometrists, 
an ophthalmologist, and the medical advisory committee through the Department of 
Transportation do our best to communicate on vision and medical requirements of drivers' 
licenses. 

We oppose the 12-year renewal interval. It is a period of great length to hold the licensees 
accountable in meeting the vision requirements. 

Chairman Ruby: Are the vision changes quite a bit different between men and women? 
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Nancy Kopp: I don't practice optometry, so I can't answer that. 

Representative Jones: Would an eye exam every six years be satisfactory from your point 
of view? 

Nancy Kopp: We have been working with SB 2123 on the six years, and yes, we would 
agree with that. 

There was no further testimony in opposition to HB 1299. 

16:18 
Glenn Jackson, Director, Driver's License Division, North Dakota Department of 
Transportation, spoke in a neutral capacity on HB 1299 and provided written testimony. 
See attachment #3. 

In reference to the fiscal note that is on this bill, the $50,000 in costs actually wouldn 't be a 
cost because our vendors are required to make legislative changes without cost. But, we did 
discover, after looking at it deeper, that spreading the revenue out is going to be a significant 
revenue loss. 

Chairman Ruby: Are you covering the cost of each license that is issued? 

Glen Jackson: No, we take a loss of about $6.05 for every document that we produce. 

Chairman Ruby: So, spreading out the process should actually save money. 

Glen Jackson: Our costs remain the same. Depending on the savings that we could 
generate through improved efficiencies by pushing it out a longer period of time, then possibly 
not increasing staff as volume continues to increase. I can't guarantee a savings in that 
manner, but it would prevent additional cost in the future. 

Vice Chairman Rick C. Becker: You lose money for each license that you process, by 
about $6.00? 

Glenn Jackson: Yes. If you look at the cost for the division to function, then look at the 
revenue we gain through fees for all of the things that we do and throw the revenue up against 
the cost, it is a loss of about $6.05 for every document. That has to come out of special funds. 

Vice Chairman Rick C. Becker: A lot of these costs are what are known as sump costs. 
To exist you need a certain amount of money. That should be set aside when we are looking 
at the cost per driver's license. The only way you can determine whether you are coming out 
ahead or behind is to know what the marginal cost is to produce a driver's license. That cost 
needs to be assessed based on what the fee is. So, if what you are talking about is that the 
cost to process the driver's license is $6.00 more than what you are getting in revenue, then 
it is impossible to produce half as many money losing items and have it cost you more money. 
That would be unless you are pulling in the sump costs, the plant costs and the cost that 
have nothing to do with the marginal costs of producing this widget, a license. It doesn't 



House Transportation Committee 
HB 1299 
1-26-17 
Page 4 

make sense to me. I get so frustrated with these fiscal notes. There should be consistency, 
and this feels like there is not consistency. 

Chairman Ruby: What would be the process for someone has a 12-year license, and every 
six years they have to provide proof of getting an eye exam, and they don't? Do you have to 
suspend the license or send out letters to notify them that they need the exam? How would 
the department enforce that portion? 

Glenn Jackson: If we went with the 12-year license, and you have to have your eyes 
checked every six years. Once you reach the older age, you would need to renew your 
license every six years. 

Discussion on the cost of drivers' licenses and raising the fees. 

Representative Paur: You stated that when we went from 4 years to 6 years, was there a 
money savings? 

Glenn Jackson: There was a savings in the fact that we had to process people less. That 
meant that we could do more people because the volume shifted with the time. So, we didn't 
have to have more staff, because as the volume increased, we had to process them less 
often. We went from a 4-year license at $10, to a 6-year license at $15, which basically kept 
it at $2.50 a year. 

There was no further testimony on HB 1299. 
The hearing was closed on HB 1299. 



2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1299 
1/26/2017 
#27506 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introd 

A bill relating to the expiration of an operator's license; to provide for and application. 

Minutes: II Attachment #1 

Chairman Ruby brought HB 1299 back before the committee. 

Discussion about when to work on the bill. 

Representative Westlind: Is it appropriate to add an amendment that would increase the 
fee for a license? 

Chairman Ruby: You could propose that. Representative Jones could let us know if he 
would support it. 

Representative Jones: I talked to the Department about that. They said that if we moved 
the timeline on this, that they would request that we increase the fees proportionately. If we 
double the amount of time that a license is good, then we would double the fee from $15 -
$30. My point with this bill was to save money. If you increase the fees, you won't save the 
people money, but you will save the number of times they have to come in. It will save the 
department money, but not the people. 

Representative Jones: Proposed an amendment to HB 1299. See attachment #1 . 

Chairman Ruby: To summarize the amendment: This would change the bill to say eight 
years instead of twelve, and the eye exams would go to eight years until you turn 65. They 
then go to six years at age 65 and at 79 you get them every four years. 

Representative Paur moved the amendment, 17 .0735.02001. 
Representative Grueneich seconded the motion. 

A voice vote was taken on the amendment. All Aye. The motion carried. 
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Representative Westlind moved an amendment to HB 1299 to raise the license fee 
from $15 for six years and to $24 for 8 years. 

Chairman Ruby: Is that in this part of the language, or in another area? 

Representative Jones: I don't think that it is in this part. 

Chairman Ruby: I don't know that I will support that bump. I think we are saving the 
department and the people money by not having to renew every six years. 

Chairman Ruby: We have a motion; do we have a second? 
There was no second. The motion died for lack of a second. 

Representative Grueneich moved a DO PASS as amended on HG 1299 and rereferred 
to Appropriations. 
Representative Jones seconded the motion. 

Representative Paur: This is attempting to match Real ID, isn't it? We haven't determined 
what Real ID is going to be, have we? 

Chairman Ruby: No, that remains to be seen. It is extending the length of time for renewals. 
If Real ID is the law of the land within this or next year, then this would be in compliant with 
it. 

Representative Paur: Is Real ID going to be for eight years? 

Chairman Ruby: I think that it allows for eight years, but I don't think it is going to be for 
eight years. I think that it is mainly six years, but it is up to the state. 

Discussion on Real ID. 

Chairman Ruby: I think that Representative Jones' idea was that if the Real ID did take 
place in the next few years, that this would be consistent with it. 

Representative Jones: I don't understand the fiscal note. It looks like they decided that 
they would receive half of the revenues, with half of the renewals, so they would lose $50,000. 

Chairman Ruby: We would ask Representative Jones to ask for an updated fiscal note on 
the amendment. 

Representative O'Brien: Can we get an updated fiscal note on this? Since we slashed it, 
the decrease in revenue in 20-21 could be pretty significant. 

Representative Jones: I don't think the fiscal note is at all accurate. 

Chairman Ruby: Maybe when we request a new fiscal note, it will reflect the discussion that 
we have had. 
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A roll call vote was taken on HB 1299. Aye 8 Nay 4 Absent 2. 
The motion carried. 

Representative Jones will carry HB 1299. 



2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1299 
2/2/2017 
#27852 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 
/ 

Explanation or reason for introducti+ of bill/resolution: 
-- / 

A bill relating to the expiration of an operator's license; to provide for an application. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Ruby brought HB 1299 back before the committee for reconsideration . We would 
need to remove the "rereferred to Appropriations" because we received an updated fiscal 
note that makes it unnecessary to go to Appropriations. 

Representative Owens made a motion to reconsider HB 1299. 
Representative Jones seconded the motion. 

A voice vote was taken. All aye. The motion carried. 

Representative Owens moved a DO PASS on HB 1299 as amended. 
Representative Sukut seconded the motion. 

Representative Weisz asked for clarification of what the bill does with the amendment, since 
he was absent. 

Chairman Ruby reviewed the bill. 

Representative Westlind asked if it was too late to add an amendment to raise the cost of 
the fee? 

Chairman Ruby: Those that made the motion would have to pull them back. We did do a 
motion last time, and it failed . 

A roll call vote was taken: Aye 7 Nay 4 Absent 3 
The motion carried. 

Representative Jones will carry HB 1299. 



17 .0735.02001 
Title.03000 

Adopted by the Transportation Committee 

January 26, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1299 

Page 1, line 13, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0735.02001 



Date: I - cG - { 7 
Roll Call Vote #: ------

House Transportation 

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. / d-.q q 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -~I -l ..-,, ...... CJ ___ 7~3_5_·_0_2_0_0_/ _ ______ _ 

Recommendation: >i' Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By <'Y~ Seconded By ----'--=--=--="---->=-----

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dan Ruby Rep. Gretchen Dobervich 
Vice Chair. Rick C. Becker Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. Bert Anderson 
Rep. Jim Grueneich 
Rep. Terry Jones 

A ' 

Rep. Emily O'Brien I \ l /-' 
Rep. Mark Owens f\ /) \ 

Rep. Gary Paur V\ - y (\ 
Rep. Randy Schobinger " I J\J I\ 0 I 
Rep. Gary Sukut /\ \ \j/ n-.}JV 
Rep. Robin Weisz ' V/ \ LY lJ 

Rep. Greg Westlind I / " \ \ 
l/ ,~v 

u 

Total (Yes) 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

6 t'~.R- w ~'i-~ 9u-v-~ 
~ £,-..) r~, -{;;LAvi-4. 



Date: ( - 20 - /7 
Roll Call Vote #: ':£m:1 

House Transportation 

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. I -;J,<-4 Of 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: I ] , Q 7 ~ 5 '* (J2D 0 I 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

fX[ Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
)4_ As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
~ Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By ™ 6 ~ Seconded By ~ ~I ~ljJ/'(\.;(( 

I/ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Dan Ruby v Rep. Gretchen Dobervich v 
Vice Chair. Rick C. Becker Ji).., I\ Rep. Marvin Nelson v 
Rep. Bert Anderson I v 
Rep. Jim Grueneich 1/ 
Rep. Terry Jones v 
Rep. Emily O'Brien v 
Rep. Mark Owens v 
Rep. Gary Paur v 
Rep. Randy Schobinger v _ 
Rep. Gary Sukut v ' 
Rep. Robin Weisz it 
Rep. Greg Westlind v 

Total (Yes) 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amend 



Date: · ~ - )---17 
Roll Call Vote#: --+----

House Transportation 

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTjS 

BILL/RESOLUTION No. a_qQ 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation : O Adopt Amendment 
0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 
0 As Amended 

0 Without Committee Recommendation 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 

0 Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: ~ Reconsider 0 

/'\" \ r;-
Motion Made By __,LAJ0~--=--.(!)'\=--_S-"---- Seconded B~ J U Y\M 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dan Ruby Rep. Gretchen Dobervich 
Vice Chair. Rick C. Becker Rep. Marvin Nelson 
Rep. Bert Anderson V':' \ 
Rep. Jim Grueneich , r R\N r\. 
Rep. Terry Jones '1 - \ (\ J 

Rep. Emily O'Brien .... \CY s\ ' 
Rep. Mark Owens \\ j' " . • 1 ) (\('-'' 
Rep. Gary Paur \J 

~ cJYVM \. 
Rep. Randy SchobinQer 

" \ i\ J ',.,-0 
Rep. Gary Sukut -J..J v~' /\ .r..l'-
Rep. Robin Weisz J'- /\ /\\ l)' 
Reo. Greq Westlind / \\\\\Y \ 

/ \ 

Total (Yes) 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: :A..--)--/ 7 
Roll Ca II Vote #: ___,_d..,,;""-='----

House Transportation 

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. };)._C/Cj 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: I I ' 0 I 3 S . 6) QO I 
~~~~~~~~----':..__...::"--~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

~ Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
~AsAmended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dan Ruby v 
Vice Chair. Rick C. Becker It-
Rep. Bert Anderson A-
Rep. Jim Grueneich v 
Rep. Terry Jones l/ 
Rep. Emily O'Brien 1/ 
Rep. Mark Owens v 
Reo. Gary Paur v 
Rep. Randy Schobinger t/ 
Rep. Gary Sukut v 
Reo. Robin Weisz v 
Reo. Greg Westlind \/' 

Total (Yes) 7 No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Representatives Yes No 
Rep. Gretchen Dobervich ..A-

Rep. Marvin Nelson 
v v 



Com Standing Committee Report 
January 27, 2017 8:07AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 17 _002 
Carrier: Jones 

Insert LC: 17.0735.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1299: Transportation Committee (Rep. D. Ruby, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (8 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 
2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1299 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 13, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 17 _002 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 9, 2017 9:37AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_22_022 
Carrier: Jones 

Insert LC: 17.0735.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1299: Transportation Committee (Rep. D. Ruby, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(7 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HS 1299 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 13, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_22_022 
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2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

HB 1299 
3/17/2017 

29377 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature Yh 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the expiration of an operator's license; and to provide for an application. 

Minutes: achments #1-3 

Chairman Laffen: Opened the hearing on HB 1299. 

Representative Terry Jones: See attachment #1. 

Chairman Laffen: In current law, how often does a 65 year-old need to renew their license? 

Rep. Jones: In current law it is not called out. This is new language for the 65 age. The 78 
is in existing law. We added in the 65 year. If we get this passed it will be every 8 eight years 
renewing and if the other bill passes then we will have 16 years of people physically going in 
to the DOT office to have it renewed, so we put the 65 in to get a lead on it to cover that. 

Chairman Laffen: Under current law between 65 and 78 they get their license renewed just 
like everyone else and the only reason this new section is being put in there is to leave them 
as they are. 
The new piece is, over 78 it is every 4 years. 

Rep. Jones: Correct. We did leave the 78 at 4 years as it is currently that now. 
On the 3rd page of the information I handed out, it will give you an idea what the surrounding 
states are doing. 

Chairman Laffen: If this bill and the one you have were to pass for up to 65 you would be 
able to go up to 8 years and then do an online renewal and then go another 8 and then you 
would have to come in again. 
Rep. Jones: Correct. 

Senator Clemens: If we go to 8 and then renew on line, is there no photo then for 16 years? 
That seems like an awful long time as people do change over that length of time. 
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Rep. Jones: No there would be no photo unless someone would want to change their old 
one to a newer one. That we can do for them to get it on file. It was brought to our attention 
the length of time, but the federal allows up to 16 years on those photos leaving it open­
ended so if someone wants to put in a new one they can. 

Senator Clemens: I wasn't thinking about the individual so much as the law enforcement 
looking at these photos. 
Rep. Jones: They seem to be comfortable with the 16 years. 

Senator Rust: I do notice on the fiscal note they say we are at the beginning of a cycle but 
after 2021 there is about a million dollars per Biennium decrease. Did you guys talk about 
that at all? 

Rep. Jones: Yes, we did talk about that quite a bit because we will have a reduced income 
from the less amount of licenses being renewed. That's the raw numbers but they didn't 
calculate back in the other things the people would be doing to create a savings to offset that 
loss. The DOT will be phasing this in so it doesn't all happen at once. 

Chairman Latten: Questions? None. Thank you. Further testimony in favor of HB 1299. 
Welcome Glenn. 

Glenn Jackson, NDDOT: (12:42) Thank you for the opportunity to present to you today. 
See attachment #2. 

Chairman Latten: (16:22) On that online renewal we can send in a photo and are you going 
to update the license then or is this for your information? 
Glenn: We will update your license and our information. 

Chairman Latten: I have a different question on real ID, different bill. Do either of these 
online or the extra years have any relationship to that at all? 
Glenn: All of them are compatible. 

Chairman Latten: Questions? None. Thank you. Further testimony in favor of HB 1299. 
Opposition? 

Courtney Koebele: (17:28) See attachment #3. 
Chairman Latten: Questions? None. Thank you. Further testimony in opposition to HB 1299. 

Nancy Kopp: (19:38) We would agree 100% with Courtney's comments. We are very 
concerned with the vision requirements being waived in 2123 and the potential of 16 years 
between screenings. We ask for a Do Not Pass; 
Chairman Latten: Questions? None. Thank you. Further testimony? Neutral testimony 
Bruce 8., NDPOA: (20:55) One of the things we do need is a good quality photo on your 
driver's license. 

Chairman Latten: DOT will be accepting photos and I think it will be a mess for them. 
Questions? None. We will close the hearing for now. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the expiration of an operator's license; and to provide for an application . 

Minutes: 

Chairman Laffen: Reopened HB 1299. This is the bill where they changed the length from 
6 years to 8 years for renewing driver's licenses. We passed over to the house a bill for online 
renewal keeping it at every 6 years, but then with the online system it went to every other 
year for renewal. We had added new language to deal with the vision requirement. The 
House took the vision requirement back off and went back to the original form of the bill, 
which had waived the vision requirement. The bill was then defeated and part of the reason 
I think, was that they had already passed the 6 to 8 bill. They were concerned about the 16 
years without going in to the Motor Vehicle Department. I visited with DOT and asked them 
if they would rather have 6-8 years or go back to keeping it at 6 years by having the in 
between online renewal. The DOT would prefer to have their online system start to get 
implemented. So my proposal for this is to hog house this bill, bring our exact bill as we had 
it for online renewal, and put it on here, repass it out of here, send it back over to them and 
see if they can pass it. If they can't, we will be right where we are, nothing will change. 

Senator Campbell: Hog house it back to our original form and add what to it? 

Chairman Laffen: Nothing. Our vision requirement would be in there as it was before and 
they would have to try pass it. 

Senator Nelson: You say it is 6-8 but for me it is discriminatory as it would be 6-4 for ages 
over 65. 

Chairman Laffen: You are right. It increases from 6-8 but also goes the other way for 65 and 
over. 

Senator Casper: I support the chairman and will vote for the amendment but not the bill. I 
think it will just be a mess of paperwork and online work and money spent unnecessarily for 
this. I do appreciate the work from the House and the Senate. 
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Senator Campbell: I agree with most of it but on the online system it wasn't just vision, it 
was supposed to streamline a lot of other things as well not just vision and now we will be 
eliminating that right? 

Chairman Laffen: Right now we all have to renew our driver's license every 6 years, 
everybody does, which entails getting a new photo taken and an eye vision test. The intent 
of online renewal was to skip the in between one of having to go in and be able to do it from 
your computer to save money and save time, and the start of a potential completely online 
system for all driver's license forever. 

Senator Campbell: So if we go back to the original bill like you said that's what will happen 
then, the DOT will be able to skip every other year so it will be every 12 years for eye tests. 

Senator Casper: My understanding was that we were going to have another way to do a 
vision test and that would require us to upload that system and I literally know of no one who 
would do that. They would just go to the Motor Vehicle department. I can see a few people 
doing that if the technology was easy to do but I just don't see that happening. 

Chairman Laffen: This gives us two options. We all agree to hog house this bill to the online 
version, the only question is, do we keep our language of the bill. 

Senator Casper: I personally would prefer our original language. 

Chairman Latten: Here is the language we passed over to the House. "The director may 
use vision information provided by the applicant to meet vision requirements for applicants 
under the age of 65, and adopt procedures necessary to implement this subsection." That's 
what we passed over there. 

Senator Rust: I like your idea of hog housing the bill back to what we had, we give it back 
to the House to pass online renewals, and if it doesn't happen then we go home. 

Senator Clemens: Thinking through this I am beginning to have a problem with this online 
stuff. First it is 6 years, then 12, and I know they are concerned about the vision test and I 
also think we are at a time where we need a good form of valid identification and I have some 
concern about this, every other year with the online things and I might be in line with voting 
a no on this bill. 

Senator Rust: I make a motion to hog house HB 1299 to our original amendment 
17 .8094.02000. 

Senator Casper: Seconded. 

Chairman Laffen: Discussion? None. 

Roll Call taken: Yeas-6, Nays-0, Absent-0. 

Chairman Laffen: Motion passes to amend the bill. Now we need a motion on the bill. 
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Senator Nelson: Motion for a Do Pass as amended on HB 1299. 

Senator Rust: Seconded. 

Chairman Laffen: Discussion? None. 

Roll Call taken: Yeas-4, Nays-2, Absent-0. Motion passes. 

Senator Laffen will carry the bill. 
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Adopted by the Senate Transportation 
Committee 

March 24, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1299 

Page 1, line 1, after "A Bl LL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact section 39-06-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to operator's 
license renewal. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 39-06-19 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

39-06-19. Expiration of license - Renewal. 

1. Every operator's license issued under this chapter or chapter 39-06.2 
expires and is renewed according to this section. 

2. The expiration date of a noncommercial operator's license for an individual 
whose birth occurred in a year ending in an odd numeral is twelve midnight 
on the anniversary of the birthday in the third subsequent year ending in an 
odd numeral, except for an individual who, at the time of renewal, is 
seventy-eight years of age or older is twelve midnight on the anniversary of 
the birthday in the second subsequent year ending in an odd numeral. The 
expiration date of a noncommercial operator's license for an individual 
whose birth occurred in a year ending in an even numeral is twelve 
midnight on the anniversary of the birthday in the third subsequent year 
ending in an even numeral, except for an individual who, at the time of 
renewal, is seventy-eight years of age or older is twelve midnight on the 
anniversary of the birthday in the second subsequent year ending in an 
even numeral. 

3. The expiration date of a commercial operator's license for an individual 
whose birth occurred in a year ending in an odd numeral is twelve midnight 
on the anniversary of the birthday in the second subsequent year ending in 
an odd numeral. The expiration date of a commercial operator's license for 
an individual whose birth occurred in a year ending in an even numeral is 
twelve midnight on the anniversary of the birthday in the second 
subsequent year ending in an even numeral. 

4. An individual who has a valid, unexpired nonimmigrant visa or 
nonimmigrant visa status for entry into the United States, a pending 
application for asylum in the United States, a pending or approved 
application for temporary protected status in the United States, approved 
deferred action status, or a pending application for adjustment of status to 
that of an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence or conditional 
permanent residence status in the United States will be issued a temporary 
operator's license or nondriver photo identification card. The temporary 
operator's license or identification card is valid only during the period of 
time of the applicant's authorized stay in the United States or, if there is no 
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definite end to the period of authorized stay, a period of one year. The 
license or card may be renewed only upon presentation of valid 
documentary evidence that the status has been extended. 

5. An applicant for renewal must present the application with the fee for 
renewal of license to the director not before ten months before the 
expiration date of the operator's license. The director may require an 
examination of an applicant as upon an original application. The director 
may require an applicant for renewal or a substitute to provide a social 
security card and proof of residence address. The director may not issue a 
distinguishing number that is, contains, can be converted to, or is an 
encrypted version of the applicant's social security number. 

6. The director may not renew an operator's license if the license has been 
suspended under section 14-08.1-07. Upon the recommendation of the 
court, the director may issue a temporary permit to the licensee under 
section 39-06.1-11 if the temporary permit is necessary for the licensee to 
work and the court has determined the licensee is making a good-faith 
effort to comply with the child support order. 

7. An applicant for renewal of an operator's license must provide a certificate 
of examination from the driver licensing or examining authorities or a 
statement as to the corrected and uncorrected vision of the applicant from 
a licensed physician or an optometrist. except as required under 
subsection 9. The director shall provide visual examination equipment at 
each location where a license may be renewed. 

8. An individual submitting an application and the fee for renewal of license 
one year or more after the expiration of a license, except an applicant 
whose military service has terminated less than thirty days prior to the 
application, must be treated as an initial applicant. 

9. A noncommercial applicant may apply by mail or electronically for renewal 
of a license during every other renewal cycle. The director may use vision 
information provided by the applicant to meet vision requirements for 
applicants under sixty-five years of age and adopt procedures necessary 
to implement this subsection." 

Renumber accordingly 
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0 As Amended 
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D Without Committee Recommendation 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1299, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Sen. Laffen, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (4 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1299 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact section 39-06-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to operator's 
license renewal. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 39-06-19 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

39-06-19. Expiration of license - Renewal. 

1. Every operator's license issued under this chapter or chapter 39-06.2 
expires and is renewed according to this section. 

2. The expiration date of a noncommercial operator's license for an 
individual whose birth occurred in a year ending in an odd numeral is 
twelve midnight on the anniversary of the birthday in the third subsequent 
year ending in an odd numeral, except for an individual who, at the time 
of renewal, is seventy-eight years of age or older is twelve midnight on 
the anniversary of the birthday in the second subsequent year ending in 
an odd numeral. The expiration date of a noncommercial operator's 
license for an individual whose birth occurred in a year ending in an even 
numeral is twelve midnight on the anniversary of the birthday in the th ird 
subsequent year ending in an even numeral, except for an individual 
who, at the time of renewal, is seventy-eight years of age or older is 
twelve midnight on the anniversary of the birthday in the second 
subsequent year ending in an even numeral. 

3. The expiration date of a commercial operator's license for an individual 
whose birth occurred in a year ending in an odd numeral is twelve 
midnight on the anniversary of the birthday in the second subsequent 
year ending in an odd numeral. The expiration date of a commercial 
operator's license for an individual whose birth occurred in a year ending 
in an even numeral is twelve midnight on the anniversary of the birthday 
in the second subsequent year ending in an even numeral. 

4. An individual who has a valid, unexpired nonimmigrant visa or 
non immigrant visa status for entry into the United States, a pending 
application for asylum in the United States, a pending or approved 
application for temporary protected status in the United States, approved 
deferred action status, or a pending application for adjustment of status 
to that of an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence or 
conditional permanent residence status in the United States will be 
issued a temporary operator's license or nondriver photo identification 
card . The temporary operator's license or identification card is valid only 
during the period of time of the applicant's authorized stay in the United 
States or, if there is no definite end to the period of authorized stay, a 
period of one year. The license or card may be renewed only upon 
presentation of valid documentary evidence that the status has been 
extended. 

5. An applicant for renewal must present the application with the fee for 
renewal of license to the director not before ten months before the 
expiration date of the operator's license. The director may require an 
examination of an applicant as upon an original application. The director 
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may require an applicant for renewal or a substitute to provide a social 
security card and proof of residence address. The director may not issue 
a distinguishing number that is, contains, can be converted to, or is an 
encrypted version of the applicant's social security number. 

6. The director may not renew an operator's license if the license has been 
suspended under section 14-08.1-07. Upon the recommendation of the 
court, the director may issue a temporary permit to the licensee under 
section 39-06.1-11 if the temporary permit is necessary for the licensee 
to work and the court has determined the licensee is making a good-faith 
effort to comply with the child support order. 

7. An applicant for renewal of an operator's license must provide a 
certificate of examination from the driver licensing or examining 
authorities or a statement as to the corrected and uncorrected vision of 
the applicant from a licensed physician or an optometrist, except as 
required under subsection 9. The director shall provide visual 
examination equipment at each location where a license may be 
renewed. 

8. An individual submitting an application and the fee for renewal of license 
one year or more after the expiration of a license, except an applicant 
whose military service has terminated less than thirty days prior to the 
application, must be treated as an initial applicant. 

9. A noncommercial applicant may apply by mail or electronically for 
renewal of a license during every other renewal cycle. The director may 
use vision information provided by the applicant to meet vision 
requirements for applicants under sixty-five years of age and adopt 
procedures necessary to implement this subsection." 

Renumber accordingly 
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House Transportation Committee 
HB 1299 - January 26, 2017 

CHAIRMAN RUBY AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

My name is Courtney Koebele. I'm appearing here today on behalf of the North 
Dakota Medical Association (NOMA) and the ND Society of Eye Physicians and 
Surgeons. The NOMA is the professional membership organization for North Dakota 
physicians, residents , and medical students. NDSEPS is the professional membership 
organization for ophthalmologists. 

The NOMA opposes HB 1299 because it extends the time for renewal for licenses 
from 6 to 12 years. North Dakota ophthalmologists have reviewed the bill and they would 
not recommend reducing the frequency of the vision screening . 

From a public safety point of view, people should be able to prove they can see 
well enough to drive more than just once every 12 years. License renewals were 
recently lengthened from 4 to 6 years. This bill now extends the renewal from 6 to 12 
years. Many serious vision problems develop prior to age 65, such as cataracts, which 
is the most common, and also macular degeneration and glaucoma, just to mention a 
few common ailments. 

Vision requirements can and do change throughout the lifetime of every individual. 
Even people under the age of 30 can have drastic changes in vision correction 
requirements. 

Therefore, the North Dakota Medical Association and the ND Society of Eye 
Physicians and Surgeons respectfully requests that you give a DO NOT PASS to HB 
1299. 

Thank you for your time and consideration . I would be happy to answer any 
questions . 
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Good Morning Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee. 
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For the record, my name is Dr. Taya Patzman and I have optometry practices in Bismarck 
and Jamestown. I am a past president of the North Dakota Optometric Association and 
am a current member of the State Board of Optometry. 

I provide written testimony in opposition of HB 1299. 

The current renewal cycle for a non-commercial driver's license is 6 years. The language 
being considered in HB 1299 would mean drivers would essentially be exempt from a 
vision screening for 12 years! Waiving the vision requirements for drivers under the age 
of 65 is irresponsible. 

From my experience, patients undergo many vision changes from the age of 16 to 65 . In 
the earlier years, patients are still going through puberty and the prescription typically can 
change quite drastically in a year' s time let alone 6 or 12 years. Many vision changes 
also happen in the 20 ' s and 30's due to pregnancy, changes in visual demand due to 
school and work changes, and many new health issues arise. In the 40 ' s, 50 's, and 60 ' s 
patients typically start presbyopia which affects near vision. This causes changes in 
distance vision also because the entire visual system relaxes causing a shift in 
prescription. Often, these changes can be subtle, but compounding over 6 or 12 years, 
they become quite significant. Typically, in this age range, diabetes is most often 
diagnosed. Many Type 2 diabetics are diabetic for several years before they are formally 
diagnosed. I have seen many patients over the years who come in for blurry vision and 
have large prescription changes from undiagnosed diabetes. 

Assuming that people will seek out eye care iftheir vision is blurry is nai"ve. If that were 
the case, my colleagues and I wouldn't see as many patients in for eye exams with the 
chief complaint of "failing the vision test when trying to get their driver's license 
renewed." I also have many patients who come in for an eye exam when they need to 
renew their driver' s license and tell me they know their vision is so poor they won't pass 

North Dakota Optometric Association 
921 South 9th Street, Suite 120 

Bismarck, ND 58504 
Phone: 701-258-6766 •Fax: 701-258-9005 

E-mail: ndoa@btinet.net • Website: www.ndeyecare.com 
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at the DMV, so they need to get glasses before they fail at their renewal. Many of these 
patients are aware of their poor vision for many years, but procrastinate until the last 
possible moment to take care of the problem. The only reason they take care of it is 
because of the vision screening at the renewal. 

Routine vision care is typically not covered under medical insurance and glasses can be 
expensive, so to assume that all drivers are going to be responsible in maintaining their 
vision care is unrealistic. Good vision can be variable depending on a person's 
perception. Many patients feel that they have very good vision at 20/60, 20/80, or worse; 
the minimum acuity for driving without correction is 20/40. I have had patients in my 
chair who have 20/200 vision (20/100 best corrected is legally blind), and know they 
need glasses for driving, but use the excuse of they only drive during the day. Their 
typical reason for not coming in sooner is that there is not enough time and the expense. 
There are complacent people now with strict driving requirements, I can't imagine the 
problems we will see if this is extended for 12 years. 

I feel that this proposed change takes a large step backwards in road safety. The 
increased traffic that we have seen in Bismarck, the Bakken, and around the state, along 
with the number of young drivers, and the distraction of cell phones, poor vision is a risk 
factor that can be greatly reduced. 

I realize that new technology is constantly emerging and stream lining the process is 
necessary. However, I do not feel that this bill offers enough detail to address these 
issues and concerns for driver's as well as pedestrian safety. 

There is discussion that needs to happen before changes are made that jeopardize the 
safety of the citizens of North Dakota. 

This concludes my testimony. I strongly encourage a DO NOT PASS on House Bill 
1299. Thank you. 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Glenn Jackson, Director, Driver's License Division 

House Bill 1299 

~:5 ....... -

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Glenn Jackson, Director of the Driver' s License 
Division at the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). Thank you for giving me the 
opportunity to address you today. 

Currently residents are required to renew their non-commercial driver' s license every six years, 
however, under the provisions contained in HB 1299 that renewal process would occur every twelve 
years for a non-commercial driver ' s license. Under the provisions of the Real ID Act of 2005, the 
maximum length of time the department can issue a Real-ID compliant credential is eight years. 

While a fiscal note was not requested, the bill takes the revenue gained to off'-set the cost or 
providing the service and spreads it over twice as much time, effectively reducing annual revenue 
by half. This takes the $2 million annual revenue and drops it to $1 million, increasing the loss per 
card issued. 

Additionally, SB2123 if passed would n!h~., - :~.non-line renewal to, occur every other renevk: -~ "_:._ 

enabling cifo-.:ens to avoid coming into the driver iicense office for r~newal every twelve years rather 
than every six if they so choose. 

Mr Chairman that concludes my testi:nony, I wmlid be happy to answer any questions . 

1 
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Rep. Jones 

January 26, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1299 

Page 1, Line 13, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Page 2, Line 4, replace "sixth" with "fourth" 

Renumber accordingly 
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North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Glenn Jackson, Director, Driver's License Division 

Senate Billll£ }'J_qq 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Glenn Jackson, Director of the Driver's License 
Division at the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). Thank you for giving me the 
opportunity to address you today. 

The business process for renewing an operator's license is the same process as for issuance of an 
original operator' s license. The applicant completes the application, provides any necessary 
documentation, completes a vision screening, pays a fee, takes a photo, and gets the license. In order to 
provide this service online, there are two parts of the business process that must change. 

The first part of the business process to change is the photo. Current technology does not allow an 
applicant to update the photo stored in the database. However, there are technology applications close to 
completion that will allow an applicant to take a 3 D photo and send it in as an attachment that can be 
' sed for an upgraded photo. Once that technology is operational, it will become a requirement for 
onducting an online renewal. As a side note, this technology is also used for the MobileDL, which we 

will introduce as soon as we hear the final implementation results in Iowa. 

The second part of the business process to change is the vision screening. The applicant does not 
complete a vision screening to complete an online renewal. In proposing this change to the business 
process we use to license individuals, we carefully reviewed driver safety issues from various states to 
validate we were not proposing a solution that generated problems. 

• Several states allow online renewal of driver licenses. These states vary from requiring some 
form of vision results to no requirement. 

• Several states have no vision screening requirements for issuance of a license at all. 
• Some states require vision results at certain ages, others do not. 
• A study conducted by the Department of Ophthalmology at the University of Alabama was 

completed in May 2016 and posted on the US Dept. of Health & Human Services webpage that 
stated there was "little to no evidence that a visual acuity screening test, no matter which pass­
fail cut-point is selected, enhances driver safety and performance." 

In short, there is no specific evidence that the requirement for the vision screening conducted by the 
driver licensing authority provides a higher level of driver safety, nor does the lack of a vision screening 
increase a safety concern. Drivers with vision concerns are expected to take the necessary steps to 
correct their vision. Also, it is important to remember that the expected number of people who will 
utilize this service is relatively low. It is also important to remember that everyone still must complete a 
vision screening at initial permitting, and at all renewals completed in the driver license office. This is 

OT eliminating the screening in all renewal cases. Additional information on both the vision screening 
d photo are attached. 

1 
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he process proposed in SB2 l 23 is for every other renewal to be available for those who desire to use 
the service online. In this case, these individuals would go online and complete an application, provide 
vision information, pay a fee, and receive their license. The process is unavailable if any information 
differs from that currently in the record. 

The major goal of this process change is to provide necessary flexibility in the process, gain efficiencies 
within the process, and provide an improved flexible service to our citizens. 

It was proposed that we provide this service but still require individuals to complete a vision test and 
have those results sent in to our office prior to the renewal process. This step could be completed, but 
with the following impact. 

• An individual that has a choice of paying for an eye examination or getting a free screening will 
most likely take the free screening, in which case they will not use the online process, but will 
require staff time to complete the process in the office. 

• Receiving and processing vision examinations and attaching them to records is a manual task and 
would require additional staff to process these documents, return those that were unreadable, 
provide follow-up for applicants whose records were not updated, etc. 

Either of these actions cancel out the expected gains in efficiency and staff utilization, and prevent the 
department from providing improved service flexibility through implementation of technological and 
process change solutions available today. 

t this time, I would like to review the changes to the bill and the attached information. 

Mr. Chairman that concludes my testimony, 1 would be happy to answer any questions. 
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In 2014 we conducted 169 ,812 vision screenings. Of these, 988 failed the screening. This represents a 
.005% failure rate, which is insignificant. 
In 2015 we conducted 121, 465 vision screenings. Of these, 83 6 failed the screening. This represents a 
.006 failure rate, which is insignificant. 

• Some of these were first time permit seekers 
• Some of these were renewals 
• Some of these were individuals who just couldn't figure out how to read the numbers 
• Only 33 states still require vision screening 
• All of these individuals walked in the door, filled out an application, and were then asked to take 

the vision screening. All of these individuals had demonstrated the ability to function visually. 
None of these individuals were blind or hazardous to others. 

There is no empirical evidence or data that associates any safety concern with the use or disuse of the 
vision screening process. If there were, all states would conduct screening and there would be 
established guidelines for this process. It is not a safety issue. 

In a recent review of 50 states and D.C., the following information was provided: 
• 13 states have a 4 year license 
• 11 states have a 5 year license 
• 8 states have a 6 year license 
• 16 states have a 8 year license 
• 2 states have a 10 year license 
• 1 state has no tin1e limit up to age 65 
• A significant number of driver photos currently exceed 6 years 

In review of on-line renewals of the above states and D.C.: 
• 14 states have online renewal 
• 12 states only allow renewal every other cycle online 
• 4 of those states with online renewal are 8 year licensed states, equating to 16 years between 

required visits 
• 1 of those is Florida 

o Approximately 11 % of renewals are online 
• 1 of those states is Georgia 

o A number was not available, but the state reports disappointment with the low numbers 
of drivers who take advantage of the process 

In North Dakota, if we get 10% of drivers to renew online every other cycle, it should equate to roughly 
10,000 online renewals a year. 

• This equates to 5,000 class D skill tests (20 minutes per test) 
• This equates to 1,500 commercial skill tests (90 - 120 minutes per test) 
• Gaining this much capacity should enable us to improve current wait times and maintain them 

for the foreseeable future, without the need for additional staff, thus controlling growth in 
government and costs 

3 
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he federal passport photo is valid for ten years; Federal Real ID guidelines allow up to 16 years 
between photos on identification documents 

If law enforcement has a problem immediately associating a photo with an individual they have access, 
through BCI, to the facial recognition software for identity verification. The points used by the software 
to track the identity of the face do not change significantly over time. 
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Online renewals will not be processed with any changes to the current record. If at any time an 
individual selects a response that ends the process, the system will not allow an additional attempt, and 
the individual will be required to go to a Driver's License Division office to process the renewal. 

Additionally: 
• The photo will be the latest photo in the system. 
• The signature will be the latest signature on file. 
• The first possible online renewal period, for those initially licensed between 15 - 20 years of age, 

will not be the first renewal, as some younger individuals may not have updated their license 
info1mation by this time. The first renewal will be physical presence in an office. Thereafter, 
every other may be online. 

FEDERAL PRIVACY ACT OF 1974 
Disclosure of the individual's social security number in this process is mandatory pursuant to NDCC 
39-06-07. The individual's social security number is used by the department for file control purposes 
and record keeping. If your social security number is not disclosed, we will not issue a license. 

I. Applicant enters name, DOB, SSN, DL# and address into identification section. 
• The system either recognizes all information as belonging to a record, or process ends and the 

applicant is directed to go to a Driver's License Division office to renew their license. 

2. Once identification is complete and record is recognized, applicant is asked the following questions 
with corresponding results. 

3. Under the provisions of the Uniform Anatomical Gift Act, do you wish to be identified as an organ 
and tissue donor? Yes/No 

• Neither response stops the process. 

4. Have you experienced significant vision changes not reported to the Driver's License Division in the 
past six years? Yes/No 

• If yes, the process ends and the applicant is directed to go to a Driver's License Division office 
to renew their license. 

• If no, the process continues. 

5. Regardless of vision changes, attach vision information completed no more than sixteen months 
before license expiration. 

• If no attachment selected, process ends. 
• If attachment selected, process continues. 

6. Do you have a physical or medical condition not reported to the Driver's License Division in the past 
years? Yes/No 
• If yes, the process ends and the applicant is directed to go to a Driver's License Division office 

to renew their license. 
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• If no, the process continues. 

7. Do you have a history of epilepsy, blackout attacks, or other lapses of consciousness not reported to 
the Driver's License Division in the past six years? Yes/No 

• If yes, the process ends and the applicant is directed to go to a Driver's License Division office 
to renew their license. 

• If no, the process continues. 

8. Have you been adjudged incompetent or been disabled due to a mental illness? Yes/No 
• If yes, the process ends and the applicant is directed to go to a Driver's License Division office 

to renew their license. 
• If no, the process continues. 

9. Do you habitually use alcoholic beverages or narcotic drugs to excess? Yes/No 
• If yes, the process ends and the applicant is directed to go to a Driver's License Division office 

to renew their license. 
• If no, the process continues. 

10. Protect Yourself: If your application contains any false or fraudulent information, your driving 
privileges will be revoked or cancelled. You may also be subject to criminal penalties. 

ertify, under penalty of perjury, that the information hereon is true and correct, and that I do not 
, ossess a license to drive or have an active license record in any other jurisdiction, nor are my driving 
privileges under suspension, revocation, cancellation or disqualified in any jurisdiction. 

Electronic Signature 

11. Once previous steps complete (and once photo validation tools are available) submit current photo. 
Photo submitted cannot include wearing of any headgear, unless currently authorized due to specific 
religion requirements. A photo observed with headgear will result in the process ending prior to 
issuance. 

12. Once all is complete, the individual will click on the SUBMIT button. 

13. At this time the system will automatically perform several checks to validate information. 
• If the system detects an error the process stops and the individual is referred to a Driver's 

License Division office. 
• If all processes without error, continue. 

14. Once all checks complete satisfactorily, the individual will be required to submit payment via a 
credit card. 

• If it processes without error, the system will generate a receipt the individual can print. 
• If it does not process, the process stops and the individual is referred to a Driver's License 

Division office. 
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5. At this point, the renewal goes into a work queue. The next business day an examiner will review 
he information, to include the photo submitted, and print the license, conduct a quality check, and mail 

the license to the individual. Expected delivery is within 5 business days. 
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Abstract 

Ove r the past several decades there ha s been a sharp increase in the number or st udi es focused on 

the relationship bct\vccn vision and dri vi ng. The intensified scicn ti!ic attention to thi s topi c has 

most lik e ly been st imulated by the lack orrn1 evidence- basis l(ir determining visi(l n standards f()r 

driving li ccnsurc and a poo r understanding abou t how vision impairment impacts dri ve r safety and 

performance. Clin icians dqie nd on the scient ili c literature on vision and driv ing as a resource tc 

appropriately advise visually impaired pa tie nts about dri vi ng fitn ess. Policy makers also depend 

on the sc ientific literature in order to develop guidelines that arc evidence-based and arc thus l~tir 

to persons w ho arc visually impaired. Thus it is important for clini cians and policy makers alike to 

unde rs tand how va rious st udy designs and measu rement methoJ ;; should be appropriately 

in terpreted so that the conc lusions and recom mendations they make based on thi s literature are not 

overly broad. too narrowly constrai11ed. or even misgu ided. In this overview, based on our 15 

yea rs or ex perience in thi s field , we oJ'fi.: r a methodological framc\.vork to guide interpretations 0 1· 

studies on vision and driving. which can also se rve as a heu ri sti c for researchers in the area. Herc 

we di scuss resea rch designs and general measu rement methods for the st udy of vision as they 

relate to dri ver safety, driver perf(i rmancc. and driver-centered (sell-reponcd) outcomes. 

Keywords 

dri ving: vis ion: vision impairment: eye disease: research methods 

I. Introduction 

Just as in a literate soc ictv the ability 10 read is imponant for quality of life. the same can be 

sa id !"or dri vi ng in a soc ietv dependent on the personal \T hi e le l(1r mobilit y and 

transportation . Visual acuity tes ting is the most common functional method fo r determining 

el igibility for li ccnsu re wo rld wide. in addition to on-road and k11owledge tests.~ cl thc·rc i,; 

lit1k lo nn .::' idencc that a' isual acuit\· screening test. 1w mat tel" which pass-foil cut-point 1s 

~ClC i. enhances ili1\·cr saJct) ':TI'lti-pcrfrmmITTCc-:-'14 ] he· absenec of C\· idc111x-based \is ion 

l'l\ITCsponU111g ;1u1hor: C ynr hi;1 o\\"slcy, Dt:pallllh .. '11( \lfOphchal 111olc1gy. L'ni\"1...:rsiry l\f ·\lahama al Birming.h:.im. 700 S. 1xrh St1"L'1..'l. 
Suik· (\()lJ. Birmin~ham .- \L 3:'29-l-0009. O\\ ·=--k: ·, a · u~1h . i...·du. 

/ 
t / \ 



(l/;fp~ ~ ( ft 9 
N& J-J.qq 3.17.17 

Contents lists avai lable at ScienceDirect VI SION 

Vision Research 
,,._,,,..~ 

r y 1r r; 
117 pj I"; 
II al 111!.'1, 

journa l homepage: www.elsevier.com/ loca t e/ vis r es Ii) =·· ··- • 

Review 

Vision and driving 

Cynthia Owsley ·'··, Gerald McGwi n Jr. .i.!J 

·' Depar1111e111 of Op/11/10/1110/ogy. School of Medici11e. Univerrny of A/11b11nw al Hir111111glw111. liir111111glia111. Al. 35294-0009, USA 
" Oeµ11ru11e111 of 1'.pide111iology. School of l'u/Jllc Heal1h. U11 iversily of Ala/Janw 111 Rinni11g/Ja 111. Hir111inglra111, Al. 3529,1-0022. USA 

ART I C LE I NFO AB S TRA C T 

Ar1icle hmory : 
Recerved 27 March 20 I 0 
Received in revi sed forrn 18 May 20 I 0 

Keywords: 
Vision 
Driving 

Driving is the primary means of personal travel in many countries and relies heavily on vision for its suc­
cessful execution. Research over the past few decades has addressed the ro le of vision in driver safety 
(motor vehicle collision involvement) and in driver performance (both on -rn,1cl and using interactive sirn­
ul,1tors in the laboratory). Here we critically review what is currently known about the rnle of va riou:; 
aspects of visual function in driving. We also discuss translati ona l research issues on vision screenrng 
fo r licensu re and re-licensure and rehabili tation of visual ly impaired persons who want to drive. 

Vision impairment 

roduction 

Driving is inai-guably a highly visual ta sk. Even though visual 
acuity is the ubiquitous screen ing test during applica tion fo r a dri­
ver's l icense, many other aspects of vi sual function and visual pro­
cessing are undoubted ly invo lved in supporting th e effective 
con trol of a vehicle. During the last two decades there has been a 
burst of research activ i ty focu sed o n t he role of vision in driving, 
much of which has been centered on what types and degrees of vi­
sion impairment hamper d river sa fety and performance. This body 
of work is large ly motivated by society's neecl to preserve public 
safety on the roadways. The larger question em e1·ging from this re­
search is. what shou ld be the visual requirements for obta ining or 
maintaining a driver's l icense? There is w idespread agreement that 
v ision standa1·ds for driver l icensure need to be evidence-based so 
as not to unfairly p rohibit i nd ividua ls from driving who have rhe 
visua l sk ills necessa ry to do so. in spite of being visually impaired . 
Even though the field does not yet have the evidence accumu lated 
ro define those standards. the research over the past two decades 
has gone far in contributing to this evidence base. Th is art icle wi ll 
critically summarize t hese fi ndings. 

Befo1·e doing so. however. ir is important to acknowledge tha t 
driving is nor simply JUSt a way to "ger around", bur in fact is the 
primary ancl preferred mode o f travel for adu lt s in the US ancl 
m any other countries ( Hu & Reuschei-. 2004). Being d driver has a 
profound impact on heal th and w ell- being. Driving cessa tion, 
regard less of whether it is voluntary or involuntary ( i .e .. license 
revocation ), ca n have a number of adverse consequences. Cessat ion 

·'v ing has been associated with decreased l1eal th- related qual-

Orl"L'Sj)Ol1d1 ng cllrtho r 

F· 11 1t1i/ udclrcs.' : uw·d1..•;; ,;1·u.1h .-.· . .1 ;i (C. Ows l t·~d 

00-J ::! -6080!5 - Sl.'<.' fnrn t m.Hrcr 2010 Elsl'v~!.."·r I.rel. ,-\ JJ n~hr:-: r"t':' t'IVl'd 

clo r !O ltl l1 1 : \ l 'i ll' ' ~0 11 11 1 :. P!I 

;,; 20 IO Elsevier ltd. All ngllts reserved. 

ity of l ife (DeCirlo. Scillcy, Well s. & Ow~ lcy. 2003). increased like­
lihood ofdepressipn and social isolat ion (1 .. onda. Wdllacc. & Herzog. 
2001: M.irntroli et .11.. 1997: l{ag l,rncl. Sa toriano, & M ,Kl.eocl. 2005 ), 
reduced access to healthcare services (Ow sley ct .ii.. 2006. 2008), 
and increased l ikelihood of placement in long- te1·m -cJre ( Freen~.111 . 

Cange. Munoz. & West. 200fi). It also crea tes a neecl for alternative 
transportation options at both the societal ancl individual level that 
are potentially expens ive (e.g .. public transportation and pa ra­
tran sit system s. taxi) (Rose11bloo111. 1993; T1·,111 sportation Rese.irch 
BoMcl. 1988) and are unavai lable in many geographic areas, espe­
cia lly rural areas.Just as read ing in a literate society is important to 
qua l ity of life. so is driving in a socie ty that depends on the per­
sona l vehicle for transpor tation. 

Because vision impai1·ment is much m ore prevalent in later 
aclulthoocl, many stud ies on vision ancl d ri ver safety and perfor­
mance focus on adu lt s ;>- SO years old. Beca use of this focus on 
the older adult population. other m ed ica l ancl functional co-mo1·­
bidities common in late adulthood are potential confounders in 
unclerstancling the relationsh ip between vi sion and driving. In par­
ticu lar. cognitive impairment eleva tes crash ri sk and impairs driv­
ing performance ( Ball ct ,11. . 200G; Woocl. 1\n stey. l<er r. L.:irhcrcz, I'< 
I.ore!. 2008). Thus. study designs that make use of older adult pop­
u lations to study associations between vision ancl driving must 
cons ider cognitive co- morbidities whenever possible. 

In research on drivi ng, there are two major outcomes (depen­
dent variables) - driver safety and driver performance. They are 
no t synonymous in that they assess different constructs and use 
different types of methodology in doing so. Safecy i s defined by ad ­
verse driving events. typically motor vehic le collision involvement 
(e.g .. at - fa ul t crashes. injurious crashes). Information on these ad ­
verse events 1s typi ca lly provided by a sta te's m otor vehicle admin ­
isuation in the form of acciden t reports. The US Department or 
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• North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Glenn Jackson, Director, Driver's License Division 

House Bill 1299 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Glenn Jackson, Director of the Driver's License 
Division at the North Dakota Department of Transportation (DOT). Thank you for giving me the 
opportunity to address you today. 

Currently residents are required to renew their non-commercial driver's license every six years; 
however, under the provisions contained in HB1299 that renewal process would occur every eight 
years. The department supports the bill. 

Regarding the fiscal note, the bill takes the revenue gained to off-set the cost for providing the six 
year cycle service and spreads it over a quarter more time, effectively reducing annual revenue 
beyond FY2023. Changing the renewal cycle time will not cost the department funds. 

When we go to an eight year cycle under HB 1299, we suggest implementing a process to stagger 
the licenses, so that we do not end up with four years of high intensity renewals and four years of 
very limited renewal processing. 

• To accomplish this, we would need to be able to issue licenses for six, seven, or eight years over the 
next six year cycle, so the end result is a better distribution for the renewal process going forward. 
A distribution stagger process chart is attached. However, the concern is that with statute providing 
an eight year license, we could not implement a process to stagger renewals, nor could we charge 
the designated fee for less time than the eight year license fee. To overcome this concern, a draft 
amendment is attached. 

Mr. Chairman that concludes my testimony, I would be happy to answer any questions . 
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#Years 

• Renewal Renewal 
Group First 

Renewal 
2017 7 -12 x x 6 

1-6 Yl Yl 6 
2018 7 - 12 Y2 Y2 7 

1-6 Zl Zl 6 
2019 7 - 12 Z2 Z2 8 

1-6 Al Al 6 
2020 7 - 12 A2 A2 8 

1-6 Bl Bl 6 
2021 7 - 12 B2 B2 8 

1-6 Cl Cl 7 
2022 7 - 12 C2 C2 8 

1-6 D D 8 
2023 7 - 12 x 

1-6 Yl 
2024 7 - 12 

1-6 Zl 
2025 7 - 12 Y2 

1 - 6 Al 

• 2026 7 - 12 
1 - 6 Bl 

2027 7 - 12 Z2 
1-6 

2028 7 - 12 A2 
1-6 Cl 

2029 7 - 12 B2 
1-6 

2030 7 -12 C2 
1-6 D 

2031 7 - 12 x 
2032 Yl 
2033 Y2 Zl 
2034 Al 
2035 Z2 Bl 
2036 A2 
2037 B2 Cl 
2038 C2 
2039 D 
2040 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1299 

Page 1, line 8, after the period insert "The director may, until July 31 , 2022, issue pro­
rated licenses at different renewal lengths to comply with this section ." 

Renumber accordingly . 
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CHAIRMAN LAFFEN AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

My name is Courtney Koebele. I'm appearing here today on behalf of the North 
Dakota Society of Eye Physicians and Surgeons. NDSEPS is the professional 
membership organization for state's ophthalmologists. 

The NDSEPS opposes HB 1299 because it extends the time for renewal for 
licenses from 6 to 8 years . North Dakota ophthalmologists have reviewed the bill and 
they would not recommend reducing the frequency of the vision screening . 

SB 2123, which is pending in the house, has been amended to allow for applicants 
o renew online without a vision screening for every other renewal. Therefore, if HB 
1299 passes, someone could come in at age 21 for a license renewal and vision 
screening , then renew online at age 29, and at age 37 would have to come in and 
receive a vision screening when they renew their license. From a public safety point of 
view, people should be able to prove they can see well enough to drive more than just 
once every16 years. 

Many serious vision problems develop prior to age 65, such as cataracts, which is 
the most common , and also macular degeneration and glaucoma, just to mention a few 
common ailments. 

Vision requirements can and do change throughout the lifetime of every individual. 
Even people under the age of 30 can have drastic changes in vision correction 
requirements. 

Therefore, the ND Society of Eye Physicians and Surgeons respectfully requests 
that you give a DO NOT PASS to HB 1299. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. I would be happy to answer any 
uestions. 




